
CORRECTIONS: 1-5-1d – Meet the
2004 ASA Bat Performance Standard,
bear either the 2000 or 2004 certifica-
tion mark (Figure 1-6) and not be list-
ed on the USA Softball Non-approved
bat List with ASA Certification Marks
as found on www.usasoftball.com.

3-2-7c – Garments other than team
uniforms – such as arm sleeves, leg
sleeves and tights – are permissible.
Anything worn on the arm or leg is a
sleeve, except a brace, and shall meet
the color restrictions.

SITUATION 1: (a) In the first inning,
Team A has a courtesy runner replace
F1 on first base without notifying the
plate umpire. Team B notifies the
plate umpire that the runner was
unreported. (b) Later, in the third
inning S1 comes up to bat in place of
B3 for Team A without being report-
ed. Team B again notifies the plate
umpire of the unreported substitute.
(c) Again, in the sixth inning Team A
has S2 take the position of F7 without
informing the plate umpire. After a
pitch to the first batter, Team B noti-
fies the plate umpire that S2 is an
unreported substitute. RULING: In
(a), Team A would be given a team
warning for the unreported courtesy
runner. In (b), since this is the second
violation of an unreported player,
both S1 and Team A’s head coach
would be restricted to the
dugout/bench for the remainder of
the game. In (c), since this is a repeat
violation of an unreported player par-
ticipating in the game, both S2 and
Team A’s new head coach would be
restricted to the dugout/bench area.
(3-6-7 Penalty)

SITUATION 2: (a) F1 has a powdered
rosin bag which she squeezes in her

hand then places back on the ground
prior to stepping on the pitcher’s
plate. Once on the pitcher’s plate she
goes directly to the ball without wip-
ing the drying agent from her hand.
(b) F1 takes a comparable drying
agent (Gorilla Gold) from her pocket
and wipes her hand on it several
times, then places the towel back into
her pocket. Once on the pitcher’s
plate, she goes directly to the ball
without wiping her hand. (c) F1
touches the dirt infield with her hand
then steps onto the pitcher’s plate and
goes directly to the ball without wip-
ing off her hand. (d) F1 picks up a
hand full of dirt and rolls it around in
her hand, then drops the dirt and
steps onto the pitcher’s plate and goes
directly to the ball without wiping off
her hand. (e) F1 picks up a handful of
dirt and places it onto the ball rubbing
the dirt into the ball. RULING: Legal
in (a) and (b). The powdered rosin
and the comparable drying agent are
permitted based on their ability to not
transfer to the ball. Wiping these sub-
stances off the hand prior to touching
the ball is not necessary. Legal in (c)
and (d). Dirt is not considered a for-
eign substance. Therefore, it is not
necessary to wipe off the hand before
going to the ball. Illegal in (e).
Rubbing dirt onto the ball is consid-
ered defacing the ball and is not per-
mitted. (6-2-2, 1-3-6)

SITUATION 3: (a) Team A has a bat-
ter who is wearing an optic yellow
batting helmet. (b) Team B’s catcher is
wearing a helmet that is optic yellow
and has the appearance of having
been custom painted. RULING: Legal
in (a) and (b), provided the helmets
are not broken, cracked or dented,
and comply with all other NFHS
requirements. (1-6, 1-7)

SITUATION 4: (a) B1 hits the ball to
F5 who fields the ball and throws to
F3. B1 reaches first base prior to the
throw, but misses first base stepping
completely over the base. F3 catches
the throw from F5 touching first base
as B1 is two steps beyond first base.
(b) R1 is on first base when B2 hits a
fly ball past the outfielders. As R1 is
advancing to third base, she misses
second base. F8 retrieves the ball and
throws it to F4 who is a couple of
steps toward the outfield behind sec-
ond base. The throw from F8 is high
and F4 jumps to catch the ball landing
on second base with possession of the
ball. F4, seeing R1 trying to advance
home, turns and throws the ball to F2.
Should the umpire determine that the
defense has made a valid appeal?
RULING: In (a) and (b), these are not
valid attempts to execute an appeal.
The fielder’s actions must be able to
be recognized by the umpire as an
effort to make an appeal, and/or the
fielder must verbally inform the
umpire she is executing an appeal.
Since the fielder’s actions were not
interpreted as a request for an appeal
and the player made no verbal
request for the umpire to rule on an
appeal, the umpire should not consid-
er these appeal plays.

SITUATION 5: (a) With R1 on first
base, B2 hits the ball to F5, who throws
the ball to F4 at second base to retire
R1. F4, seeing that B2 is already at first
base, does not throw to F3. F3 is off
first base and starts requesting the ball
from F4. After having control of the
ball, she touches first base and looks at
the base umpire pointing at B2 and
first base before B2 returns to first
base. (b) On a base hit to the outfield,
R1 misses second base on her way to
third base. After the ball is returned to
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the infield, R1 is on third base and B2 is
on first base. F5 has the ball and is
about to throw to F1 when F4 asks for
the ball and touches second base while
looking at the base umpire. Should the
umpire determine that the defense has
made a valid appeal? RULING: In (a)
and (b), these are valid appeals. In
these cases, the fielder’s actions are eas-
ily recognized as a request for the
umpire to rule on the appeal.

SITUATION 6: At the pregame confer-
ence Team A is using the DP/FLEX
option, but when the umpire inspects
the lineup, she finds that the FLEX has
no defensive position listed and the DP
is listed as F1. RULING: The plate
umpire should not accept the lineup as
it is not valid. All starting players must
have a position listed. Since the main
purpose of the DP position is to play
offense, the DP’s starting position is
listed as DP and she must be listed in
one of the top nine positions in the bat-
ting order. Since the main purpose of
the FLEX position is to play defense,
she must have a defensive position
assigned in the starting lineup. She
must be placed in the 10th position in
the lineup and identified as the FLEX
player, and have a starting defensive
position. After the lineup has become
official at the plate conference, Team A
can then have its DP pitch for the FLEX,
and in this case the FLEX will have left
the game and have one re-entry.

SITUATION 7: With F2 in the position
to receive the pitch and B1 in the bat-
ter’s box ready for the pitch, F1 is
standing behind the pitcher’s plate and
receives a sign from her coach in the
dugout. She then steps onto the pitch-
er’s plate, immediately bringing her
hands together and then starts her
pitch. The plate umpire calls “no
pitch” ruling that F1 was trying to
return the pitch too quickly (quick
pitch). RULING: Incorrect ruling. The
correct ruling is illegal pitch (6-1-1b). A
no-pitch ruling (the ball is returned too
quickly) requires the pitch to be legal,
and the umpire judges that the pitcher
attempted a quick return of the ball
before the batter had taken a batting
position, or was still off balance as a
result of a previous pitch. (6-2-4b) 

SITUATION 8: While standing behind
the pitcher’s plate, F1 looks at her coach
who verbally says 356. F1 and F2 look
at their wristbands, then F1 steps onto
the pitcher’s plate, looks at F2 and
pauses, then brings her hands together
and starts her pitch. (a) The plate
umpire calls an illegal pitch because F1
did not nod at F2 indicating she had
accepted a signal from F2. (b) The base
umpire calls an illegal pitch as he was
able to see that F2 did not give a signal
to F1. RULING: Incorrect rulings in (a)
and (b). By rule, F1 must simulate tak-
ing a signal from F2. To simulate taking
a signal, F1 is only required to look at
F2 and pause while on the pitcher’s
plate with her hands separated. (6-1-1b)

SITUATION 9: When the umpires
arrive at the field, Team A’s equipment
is out in front of its dugout ready for
inspection. (a) Team B’s equipment is
not out and ready for inspection. The
umpires remind Team B’s coach of the
new rule requiring the team’s equip-
ment to be out of the dugout ready for
inspection. (b) The crew returns to
inspect Team A’s equipment. When the
inspection is complete, they notice
Team B’s equipment is still not out and
ready for inspection. (c) Continuing
their pregame inspections, the umpires
walk the field looking for areas that
may require special ground rules.
After they complete their walk of the
field, Team B’s equipment is still not
out of the dugout and ready for inspec-
tion. RULING: In (a), since there is no
time requirement for teams to have its
equipment ready for inspection, the
umpires should alert any team that
does not have its equipment outside of
the dugout that they are ready to start
inspecting equipment, without issuing
a warning. The teams should then be
given adequate time to comply. In (b),
Team B’s coach receives a warning for
his team’s equipment not being outside
of the dugout and ready for inspection.
In (c), since this is a second offense for
not having the team’s equipment ready
for inspection, Team B’s head coach is
restricted to the dugout for the remain-
der of the game. (3-2-15)


